



ANNUAL REPORT

CONTENTS



Presidents Report	1
NGFNL Awards	3
Football Ladder	4
Seniors	4
Reserves	5
Thirds	6
Netball Ladder	7
A Grade	7
B Grade	7
C Grade	8
D Grade	8
17 & Under	9
15 & Under	9
Best & Fairest	11
Annual Netball Report	12
Team of the Year	16
A Grade	16
Seniors	17
17 & Under	18
Thirds	19
Financial Report	20
Statement of Comprehensive Income	20
Movements in Equity	20
Statement of Financial Position	21
Sponsors	26

2022 PREMIERS









PRESIDENTS REPORT

Given the events of the past couple of years I am not sure if our Board and member clubs approached season 2022 with excitement or trepidation. However as a half glass full individual, I trusted we would have a season to embrace and remember. As the 2022 season played out, we had minimal disruption and whilst some minor COVID related issues arose, we delivered a full home and away season culminating with an exciting finals series. Our Grand Final venue was moved from Traralgon and held at the Gordon st Rec Reserve in Heyfield. We thank the significant contribution made by all at the Heyfield FNC for showcasing this venue on our big day.

agl agl

Congratulations to all victorious Grand final teams and we congratulate the Yallourn Yallourn Nth FNC on winning their first NGFNL Senior Football premiership and the Woodside FNC on yet another A grade Netball premiership.

Throughout the year we rolled out several feature matches such as our Good Friday game, Pride Cup, various NAIDOC ceremonies and celebrations, several impassioned Mental Health Awareness fixtured games. Regretfully our community clubs have not been immune to the perils of mental health issues in our society and all clubs collective efforts to create awareness and solution pathways has been outstanding and commendable. A number of clashes where historic Cups are played such as the Lang Only Cup, Holland Komen Cup to name a few played out during 2022. All of these matches are inspiring in their own way, and we look forward to delivering more of the same as we prepare and start moving towards season 2023.

Of course, none of the above could happen without the support and energy of our member clubs and their respective volunteers. Well done and thank you does not seem to be enough but as always, I stand and salute you all for a job well done

It would perhaps be remiss of me if I did not mention the Gormandale vs Glengarry match where Jarryd Roughead an AFL legend donned the Gormandale Tiger jumper for the day to support the club and promote the league. Despite the result, the Gormandale venue was presented in great condition, the crowd was significant, and a great day was had by all.

Our league was again supported by AGL Loy Yang as our major sponsor, and I am continually amazed by the encouragement offered throughout the course of a season by AGL and their respective personnel. In a surprise for us all AGL announced at our Grand Final dinner they would extending their sponsorship agreement with our league for a further 3 years which should give us all significant confidence in the strength of our league and what we deliver to community sport in this region.

Other league sponsors have again been generous, supportive, and untiring. Accordingly, I would like to thank TRFM, Electel, McDonalds, Traralgon Vineyard, Brentcorp, The Nationals and Spectrum who have all offered ongoing support and a commitment to our Brand in 2022. Thank you everyone.



PRESIDENTS REPORT

I said last year that out of adversity comes innovation and that is exactly what happened a with the 2022 Vote Count and awards night. A live broadcast extends our reach and ability for others to view these important events. It was nice to be able to present some medals on Grand Final day and our Board will consider taking the best of both worlds when event planning in 2023. I thank Director Grant Johnstone and the Spectrum team for pulling all of this together in what was a professional production and arguably, the best within the Gippsland market.

Our league's relationship with the SUA remains strong and collaborative despite the challenges of COVID within competitive sport. As always, I would like to thank President David Faulkner and his executive for their ongoing support. Our leagues independent Tribunal panel headed by Henry Scholtes and Secretary Graeme Hemming have the unenviable job adjudicating difficult situations however it is my opinion they deliver outcomes which are fair and equitable. We acknowledge their tireless work and thank all sitting panel members accordingly.

From a financial perspective our league is again in good shape with a strong Balance sheet. Initial projections suggest we will again be able to hold course when it comes to members league fees and have budgeted for zero increases for 2023. I would like to think we maintain some strong disciplines in this aspect of our business. We will always explore opportunities for income increases & cost controls. We have some plans afoot for 2023 to build our leagues sponsorship & income base.

Whilst talking finance I would like to acknowledge the work and guidance offered by McMillian Partners of Traralgon via Mrs Wendy Glassen including our annual audit review of all transactions. It is always reassuring to have a third party of this quality as part of our overall team.

In 2022 both Football and Netball were forced to implement new software and database platforms from AFL Vic and Netball Vic which caused a significant amount of stress and frustration across all levels of community sport. Training was minimal prior to the season proper but I would like to thank those clubs who worked together to share outcomes and find solutions. We trust 2023 will far less complex with this knowledge and experience now in hand.

From a League Administration & Board perspective there were many robust discussions on many different topics. No decision or policy is offered or tabled without due discussion and debate, and I would like to think despite any alternate views this is always tabled in the best interests of Football and Netball within the NGFNL.

2022 will be the final year for two long-time servants of our Board. Ms Jackie Bond and Mr Geoffrey Copper will not be seeking re-election in 2023 and will depart our Board to pursue other life ventures and greener pastures. Both individuals have dedicated 10 years plus on our Board and I can assure you have offered many hours of voluntary service to help steer our Brand to a position of strength and one which is respected by our peers. I am confident my fellow Directors and member clubs will thank them for their service and wish them well in all future endeavours.

For several years now I have been honoured to serve as your League President. At some point I must hand over the reins and move on but for now I have further 12 months to serve on my current commitment to you all. I can say with some sincerity no one on our Board takes anything for granted and we thank our member clubs for their support. To all the volunteers in community sport I acknowledge and thank you for your contribution to our Brand and your respective clubs.

Thank you for being part of 2022 and we are all excited and looking forward to what 2023 may bring.

David J Kyle

President North Gippsland Football Netball League



NGFNL AWARDS



Administration Award Sale City Football Netball Club



FOOTBALL CODE OF CONDUCT AWARD
ROSEDALE FNC



NETBALL CODE OF CONDUCT AWARD
YALLOURN YALLOURN NORTH



UMPIRE OF THE YEAR BRANDON SALISURY



CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP SALE FNC



HALL OF FAME INDUCTEE
MARK "SAM" BIRMINGHAM

FOOTBALL LADDER

SENIORS

#	TEAM	Р	PTS	%	W	L	D	BYE
1	YYN Seniors	16	60	295.49	15	1	0	2
2	Churchill Seniors	16	52	188.49	13	3	0	2
3	TTU Seniors	16	48	195.95	12	4	0	2
4	Yarram Seniors	16	48	128.98	12	4	0	2
5	Woodside Seniors	16	36	153.66	9	7	0	2
6	Sale City Seniors	16	34	121.14	8	7	1	2
7	Heyfield Seniors	16	24	110.31	6	10	0	2
8	Rosedale Seniors	16	22	101.03	5	10	1	2
9	Glengarry Seniors	16	20	71.56	5	11	0	2
10	Cowwarr Seniors	16	4	25.86	1	15	0	2
11	Gormandale Seniors	16	4	19.58	1	15	0	2



FOOTBALL LADDER

RESERVES

#	TEAM	Р	PTS	%	W	L	D	BYE
1	YYN Reserves	16	60	441.27	15	1	0	2
2	TTU Reserves	16	60	403.33	15	1	0	2
3	Heyfield Reserves	16	50	287.42	12	3	1	2
4	Woodside Reserves	16	48	259.17	12	4	0	2
5	Rosedale Reserves	16	34	107.80	8	7	1	2
6	Glengarry Reserves	16	28	118.04	7	9	0	2
7	Sale City Reserves	16	28	68.95	7	9	0	2
8	Cowwarr Reserves	16	16	43.13	4	12	0	2
9	Churchill Reserves	16	12	32.12	3	13	0	2
10	Gormandale Reserves	16	8	32.75	2	14	0	2
11	Yarram Reserves	16	8	30.64	2	12	0	2



FOOTBALL LADDER

UNDER 18 THIRDS

#	TEAM	Р	PTS	%	W	L	D	BYE
1	Rosedale Thirds	16	60	461.90	15	1	0	2
2	Heyfield Thirds	16	56	321.85	14	2	0	2
3	Woodside Thirds	16	44	204.43	11	5	0	2
4	Churchill Thirds	16	44	174.97	11	5	0	2
5	Sale City Thirds	16	36	126.94	9	7	0	2
6	TTU Thirds	16	32	95.97	8	8	0	2
7	Glengarry Thirds	16	32	86.67	8	8	0	2
8	Gormandale Thirds	16	24	79.12	6	10	0	2
9	Yarram Thirds	16	16	47.85	4	12	0	2
10	YYN Thirds	16	8	48.21	2	14	0	2
11	Cowwarr Thirds	16	0	12.48	0	16	0	2





NETBALL LADDER

A GRADE

Rank ‡	Team 🛊	P \$	w ÷	L¢	D ÷	Вэ	FW ‡	FL ¢	F ¢	Α \$	PTS ¢	Calc ‡
î	Woodside A Grade	16	14	2	0	2	0	0	838	609	56	137.60
2	Glengarry A Grade	16	12	3	î	2	0	0	836	635	50	131.65
3	Rosedale A Grade	16	12	3	1	2	0	0	784	646	50	121.36
4	Sale City A Grade	16	12	4	0	2	0	0	839	601	48	139.60
5	Yarram A Grade	16	9	7	0	2	0	0	730	595	36	122.69
6	Heyfield A Grade	16	7	9	0	2	0	0	577	616	28	93.67
7	Churchill A Grade	16	6	10	0	2	0	0	551	611	24	90.18
8	Cowwarr A Grade	16	6	10	0	2	0	0	596	729	24	81.76
9	YYN A Grade	16	4	12	0	2	0	0	534	665	16	80.30
10	TTU A Grade	16	4	12	0	2	0	0	551	744	16	74.06
11	Gormandale A Grade	16	1	15	o	2	0	0	420	805	4	52.17

B GRADE

Rank ‡	Team ‡	Р \$	W ¢	L÷	D ¢	В \$	FW ‡	FL ÷	F¢	A o	PTS ‡	Calc ‡
î	Sale City B Grade	16	13	3	0	2	0	0	752	512	52	146.88
2	Yarram B Grade	16	11	3	2	2	0	0	714	598	48	119.40
3	Rosedale B Grade	16	11	4	1	2	0	0	687	606	46	113.37
4	Woodside B Grade	16	10	5	1	2	0	0	622	593	42	104.89
5	Glengarry B Grade	16	9	6	1	2	0	0	691	676	38	102.22
6	Gormandale B Grade	16	9	7	0	2	0	0	698	639	36	109.23
7	Heyfield B Grade	16	8	8	0	2	0	0	619	572	32	108.22
8	YYN B Grade	16	6	9	1	2	0	0	526	631	26	83.36
9	Churchill B Grade	16	3	11	2	2	0	0	593	640	16	92.66
10	TTU B Grade	16	3	12	1	2	0	0	598	716	14	83.52
11	Cowwarr B Grade	16	0	15	1	2	o	0	433	750	2	57.73

NETBALL LADDER

C GRADE

Rank ‡	Team 💠	P ‡	W ¢	L ¢	D ¢	В≎	FW ¢	FL ¢	F \$	Αφ	PTS \$	Calc ‡
1	TTU C Grade	16	15	1	0	2	0	0	697	443	60	157.34
2	Sale City C Grade	16	14	2	0	2	0	0	705	420	56	167.86
3	Rosedale C Grade	16	13	3	0	2	0	0	577	437	52	132.04
4	Gormandale C Grade	16	11	5	0	2	0	0	535	475	44	112.63
5	Churchill C Grade	16	9	7	0	2	0	0	491	519	36	94.61
6	Woodside C Grade	16	7	9	0	2	0	0	523	466	28	112.23
7	Heyfield C Grade	16	7	9	0	2	0	0	490	514	28	95.33
8	YYN C Grade	16	6	10	0	2	0	0	509	531	24	95.86
9	Glengarry C Grade	16	5	11	0	2	0	0	428	532	20	80.45
10	Yarram C Grade	16	1	15	0	2	0	0	372	628	4	59.24
11	Cowwarr C Grade	16	0	16	0	2	0	0	298	660	0	45.15

D GRADE

Rank ‡	Team ‡	P ‡	W ‡	L ÷	D ÷	Вф	FW ‡	FL ‡	F ‡	Α φ	PTS ‡	Calc 💠
î	Sale City D Grade	16	16	0	0	2	0	0	789	265	64	297.74
2	Rosedale D Grade	16	14	2	0	2	0	0	636	397	56	160.20
3	Woodside D Grade	16	12	3	1	2	0	0	520	420	50	123.81
4	Gormandale D Grade	16	12	4	0	2	0	0	475	396	48	119.95
5	TTU D Grade	16	10	6	0	2	0	0	506	461	40	109.76
6	Churchill D Grade	16	8	8	0	2	0	0	443	465	32	95.27
7	Yarram D Grade	16	5	11	0	2	0	0	359	561	20	63.99
8	Glengarry D Grade	16	4	11	1	2	0	0	392	528	18	74.24
9	Cowwarr D Grade	16	3	13	0	2	0	0	372	511	12	72.80
10	Heyfield D Grade	16	2	14	0	2	0	0	277	527	8	52.56
11	YYN D Grade	16	1	15	0	2	0	0	296	534	4	55.43

NETBALL LADDER

17 & UNDER

Rank	÷	Team ‡	P ¢	w ÷	L ¢	D \$	В ф	FW ¢	FL ‡	F ÷	Α ÷	PTS ‡	Calc #
1		Heyfield 17 & Under	16	16	0	0	2	0	0	1015	227	64	447.14
2		Sale City 17 & Under	16	14	2	0	2	0	0	916	335	56	273.43
3		TTU 17 & Under	16	10	5	1	2	0	0	553	480	42	115.21
4		Gormandale 17 & Under										40	
5		Glengarry 17 & Under	16	9	6	1	2	0	0	467	541	38	86.32
6		Woodside 17 & Under	16	9	7	0	2	0	0	525	556	36	94.42
7		Yarram 17 & Under	16	8	8	0	2	0	0	581	638	32	91.07
8		Rosedale 17 & Under	16	5			2	0	0	362	613	20	59.05
9		Cowwarr 17 & Under	16	4	12	0	2	0	0	427	712	16	59.97
		Churchill 17 & Under										8	46.07
11		YYN 17 & Under	16	0	16	0	2	0	0	236	772	0	30.57

15 & UNDER

Rank ‡	Team ‡	P ÷	W ¢	L a	D ‡	Вф	FW ¢	FL ¢	Fφ	Α ‡	PTS \$	Calc ‡
1	Sale City 15 & Under	16	16	0	0	2	0	0	968	184	64	526.09
2	TTU 15 & Under	16	13	2	0	2	1	0	712	197	56	361.42
3	Rosedale 15 & Under	16	14	2	0	2	0	0	868	262	56	331.30
4	Heyfield 15 & Under	16	10	5	0	2	1	0	429	337	44	127.30
5	Gormandale 15 & Under	16	9	7	0	2	0	0	429	426	36	100.70
6	Woodside 15 & Under	16	7	8	0	2	1	0	291	445	32	65.39
7	Glengarry 15 & Under	16	6	10	0	2	0	0	330	468	24	70.51
8	YYN 15 & Under	16	4	11	0	2	1	0	267	440	20	60.68
9	Churchill 15 & Under	16	4	12	0	2	0	0	288	524	16	54.96
10	Cowwarr 15 & Under	16	1	15	0	2	0	0	162	771	4	21.01
11	Yarram 15 & Under	16	0	12	0	2	0	4	33	723	0	4.56









2022 BEST & FAIREST

NETBALL

SIMONE TURNER

SALE CITY A GRADE NETBALL BEST & FAIREST

TESS HANSFORD

SALE CITY
B GRADE NETBALL BEST & FAIREST

LEAH LEESON

ROSEDALE C GRADE NETBALL BEST & FAIREST

SIMONE BRIGHTON

CHURCHILL
D GRADE NETBALL BEST & FAIREST

LILY KERRISON-MALE

YARRAM 17U NETBALL BEST & FAIREST

CHLOE SCOTT

SALE CITY 15U NETBALL BEST & FAIREST

FOOTBALL

BOADIE MOTTON

YARRAM THE SEL BURLEY MEDAL SENIORS BEST & FAIREST

MICHAEL O'SULLIVAN

WOODSIDE THE LLOYD SCHACHT MEDAL RESERVES BEST & FAIREST

LINCON SKETCHER

WOODSIDE THIRDS BEST & FAIREST



NETBALL ANNUAL REPORT

After the season of 2020 not happening at all and the 2021 season ending just before the finals started, due to Covid-19 lockdowns in Victoria, minor premiers were awarded.

This made everyone very happy to see Season 2022 start and provide our league with many memorable moments. We enjoyed another strong representative season, gained more graded umpires, experienced another very strong finals series, where large crowds supported their teams loudly and games were decided in the last minutes. This wouldn't happen without the strong support and collaboration from your netball delegates who have all worked very hard to ensure the NGFNL is administered with great pride and our members are able to participate in an inclusive environment.

Enjoying yet another year of junior development through our representative sides, players were able to take the court and successfully compete across several tournaments this year. We were able to field four junior teams, focusing on playing the higher standard of netball and developing the future stars of the NGFNL.

The 17&Under White representative team competed at the Sale Tournament, with their consistent game play they made the finals and came second. This tournament was beneficial for the team leading up to the Netball Victoria Association Championships, with the team winning the day in the 17&U championship division. This then qualified the NGFNL team to compete at the NV Finals Day in Melbourne, playing all teams from around Victoria, they ended up 5th out of 12 teams which was a fantastic effort by all! Congratulations!

The NGFNL 17&Under Red team were very competitive and developed more skills playing the higher standard of netball during both tournaments.

Both 15&U teams competed very strongly at Sale tournament and also at the Association Championships, with the Championship team ending up 6th and the Reserve team 4th in their divisions. We strongly encourage clubs to speak with your coaches and share the opportunity to coach one of our representative sides, the reward of seeing these players develop across the tournaments is certainly worth it.

We thank all our coaches, team managers, PC's, scorers and parents for your time and support to allow these talented junior players to take the court.

Our umpires for the tournaments were mentored by Netball Victoria and consequently invited to umpire at the NV Association Championship Finals Day held at Parkville, Melbourne. Congratulations to our NGFNL umpire of the year Amy King, who represented the League at the Finals Day.

Umpires across the league were once again supported by league mentors Kathleen Schuback and Kim Marchesi, we also had assistance from Jenny Bailey. We thank them for the time they have committed to lifting the standard of umpiring across the league, with a consequence of this, the league congratulating many new umpires on achieving their B & C badged accreditations. Congratulations to B badged umpires Ryan Kidd and Ally Delaney along with the many C badged umpires. Season 2022 had also seen the return of our umpire's briefing night, which Ann Castles (VNL umpire Co-Ord) kindly offered to instruct.

It is great to see clubs embracing the foundation coaching course, now completed online with all our coaches achieving this accreditation. The Development course is set to run in 2023 and we hope to see many of our coaches in attendance. These courses are endorsing the bylaw, in the first season of coaching a foundation accreditation is a minimum then by the third season of coaching a development accreditation is required.



NETBALL ANNUAL REPORT

Our finals series was once again very successful and enjoyable for all who attended. At the start of the finals series there were 9 out of 11 clubs represented amongst the finals campaign. We were privileged to experience some closely contested matches. Our Grand Final at Heyfield Recreation Reserve received many compliments, not only about the on-court performances but the atmosphere, especially with the large crowd that attended. We thank all netball delegates, coaches, players and spectators for respecting the courtside requirements to make the day enjoyable for everyone.

Congratulations to Woodside A grade 56 defeating Rosedale 48, this drawn game went into time on and absolutely showcased what great netballers we have. With the B Grade,

3rd placed Rosedale 34 won over top of the ladder Sale City 29. In C grade TTU 43 defeated Sale City 28. The D Grade premiers for 2022 were Rosedale 28 who celebrated after defeating Sale City 26, this put an end to a long reign of premierships from Sale City.

Premiers in the 17&Under division was Heyfield 43 defeating Sale City 32, then in 15&Under division the top placed Sale City 23 was upset by Rosedale 33.

The 2022 final series was officiated by umpires which consisted of NGFNL Club and independent badged umpires from other Leagues and Associations.

Congratulations to all best and fairest winners, team of the year nominees and netball code of conduct club winners YYN. Good luck to all clubs planning, developing and recruiting, ready to take your club to the next level for the 2023 season.

Finally, this is my last year on the NGFNL board after many years, time has come to take another pathway. I would like to thank all clubs and club netball delegates for the friendly welcome and your help to develop the future junior netball super stars of the NGFNL over the years. No doubt I will see you around the courts somewhere.

Thank you to all NGFNL board past and present, especially past netball director Kristy Lucas for the professionalism over the years. It was great to be part of a team that leads the Leagues in country Victoria, while helping to build that NGFNL brand.

All the very best and good luck to those who will take the NGFNL to the next level.

Jackie Bond

Director, North Gippsland Football Netball League



NETBALL REPORT

NETBALL VICTORIA ASSOCIATION CHAMPIONSHIPS

SUNDAY 5TH JUNE 2022



17&Under Championship team after finishing the Netball Victoria Association Championships Grand Final North Gippsland FNL 11 defeating Gippsland 10



17&Under Championship Team with WINNING MEDALS

Back L to R:

Zoo Stothers (Heyfield) Layde Parcops (Heyfield) Lucy Rest (Sale (

Zoe Stothers (Heyfield), Jayde Parsons (Heyfield), Lucy Best (Sale City), Traci Grogan (Coach), Lily Kerrison-Male (Yarram) Front L to R:

Lily Corcoran (Sale City), Charlotte Grogan (Heyfield), Millie Riseley (Heyfield), Millie Lamb (Heyfield) Absent: Scarlott Morris (Sale City) & Team Manager Bridget Corcoran.

The weather made for very difficult playing conditions throughout the day as Traralgon hosted the 2022 Netball Victoria Association Championships.

With far from ideal weather conditions, the morning started off freezing, cold and raining, not great for some of the players battling illness. This tournament was the chance for all players to be talented identified and an opportunity for all to represent their football netball leagues and local clubs with pride.

Our girls decked out in the RED & WHITE, did just that! Congratulations to all the NGFNL teams!

The 15&Under Open team coached by Jess Anderson gained some very impressive wins and the Reserve 15&U team coached by Deb Fox narrowly missing out on a Grand final berth yet again.

Well done to our up and coming junior talent, they are all playing and showing so much improvement over the last few months.

The 17&U Reserve team started out with some tough and close games, unfortunately losing to Warragul Drouin by 1 and drawing with East Gippsland. During the tournament they really came together as a unified side, they shone under Libby Nicols guidance as they worked together. They all should be super proud of their efforts! Each and every girl has improved immensely over the last couple of months.

NETBALL REPORT

The 17&Under Open team started out slowly, builded as the day progressed, adapted to the weather conditions and played some quality netball throughout the day. Not only are these girls incredible players to coach and mentor, they are incredibly humble and polite people, an absolute pleasure to coach. These girls are determined and disciplined, it was awesome to see them enjoying their netball and playing as a team, they have become wonderful friends even though they come from different clubs. The camaraderie was evident with the giggling and the laughter during warmups, even though it was icy cold these girls found a greatness in each other, a trusting of one another.

During the fierce competition, they managed to come up against Gippsland, yet again and take the win for our proud North Gippsland FNL in the Grand final by 1 goal.

Honestly couldn't be more grateful to be a part of this great league and be a part of this talented team. We now look forward to competiting in the Finals Day on Sunday 24th July at the State Netball Centre, Melbourne. The NGFNL 17&Under Open Team then competed at the NV Finals Day in Melbourne and finished 5th out of 12 teams in Victoria. Massive effort indeed, congratulations!

Our umpire representing NGFNL at the NV Finals Day was B Badge umpire Amy King.



NGFNL 17&Under Reserve Team

LtoR: Aleisha Marsh (Sale City), Oakleigh Riley (Churchill), Arlia Whitehead (Rosedale), Madison Beveridge (TTU), Kaylah Komens (Woodside), Kiera Walpole (Woodside), Jorja Owler (TTU), Lilly Collins (Yarram), Libby Nicol (Coach) Finished 9th



NGFNL 15&Under Championship Team

L to R: Jess Anderson (Coach), Lilli Stokes (Heyfield), Regan Leeson (Rosedale), Tilly Fox (Rosedale), Lexi Charles (TTU), Remy Grogan (Heyfield), Lily Buckley (TTU), India Dean (Sale City), Ashlee Grieve (Churchill), Corrie Dean(Team manager), Maddison Hodgson (Rosedale) Finished 6th



15&Under Reserve Team

L to R: April Martens (Heyfield), Maddy Boyd (Gormandale), Matilda Hoogerwerf (TTU), Summah Aitken (TTU), Emily Cruickshank (Heyfield), Alira Robinson (Gormandale), Phoenix Anderson (Heyfield), Chloe Fox (Sale City),

Absent: Memphis Walton (TTU) & Team Manager Leah Leeson Finished 4th





NGFNL 2022 A GRADE TEAM OF THE YEAR

COACH - Pauline Little Glengarry

SHOOTERS

Elizabeth Nicol Woodside Tiffany Boatman Glengarry

MID COURT

Indigo Waugh Sale City

Carly Johnstone Rosedale

Sarah Mayman Rosedale

DEFENDERS

Bronwyn Tebb Rosedale Holly Jonston Woodside

INTERCHANGE
Simone Turner Sale City
Charlotte Ronchi Sale City

Megan Garlick Glengarry Lily Kerrison-Male Yarram Lilli Stobie Sale City





NGFNL 2022 SENIORS TEAM OF THE YEAR

Coach - Jaime Aitken
Captain - Ryan Foat Woodside

Zach Kilgower

Campbell MacInnes
Yall/Yall North

Angus Mitchell
Churchill

FULL BACKS

Ben Johnson Woodside William Broadbent
Woodside

Brayden Woodland

Heyfield

HALF BACKS

Michael Jacobsen

Sam Davidson Sale City Dylan Bath Yall/Yall North

WINGS

David Waddell Woodside Keenan Hughes Yall/Yall North Chris Williams
Churchill

HALF FORWARDS

Ben Kearns Churchill Benjamin Brett Sale City

Dean MacDonald Yall/Yall North

FULL FORWARDS

Ruck - Ryan Foat **C** Woodside Ruck Rover - Boadie Motton Yarram Rover - Mitch Mustoe **VC** TTU

INTERCHANGE

Trent Hourigan TTU
Jai Massese Yall/Yall Nth
Corbin Sutherland Yarram
Rohan Hildebrand Rosedale
Jackson Hall Glengarry
Dillon Leys Churchill





NGFNL 2022 17 & UNDER TEAM OF THE YEAR

COACH - Kirralee Carstairs Sale City

SHOOTERS

Millie Lamb Heyfield

Lucy Best Sale City

MID COURT

Millicent Riseley Heyfield

Scarlett Morris Sale City

Lily Kerrison-Male Yarram

DEFENDERS

Jayde Parsons Heyfield

Charlotte Grogan Heyfield

INTERCHANGE

Chelsey Sadler Gormandale Lily Corcoran Sale City Jemma Birss Heyfield

Ava Melbourne TTU





NGFNL 2022 THIRDS/UNDER 18's TEAM OF THE YEAR

Coach - Jason Barnett Captain - Jai Williams Woodside

Max Lazzaro

Rosedale Waltley Sutton Sale City

Kail Hole Heyfield

FULL BACKS

Ben Woodward

Churchill

Charlie Moulton VC

Rosedale

Kohen Anderson

Heyfield

HALF BACKS

Kaden McCulloch

Sale City

Jai/Williams C Woodside

Jay Diamond Rosedale

WINGS

Harvey Blake

Heyfield

Harper Fox

Churchill

Rosedale

Lincon Sketcher

Woodside

HALF FORWARDS

Benny Harrington Heyfield

Lleyton Hecker

Oscar Smith Rosedale

FULL FORWARDS

Ruck - Luke Healy Glengarry Ruck Rover - Miller Eastham Heyfield Rover - Joh Fythe Woodside

INTERCHANGE

Ed Phelan-Penson Heyfield Harry Foat Woodside Flynn Roscoe Gormandale Colby Palmer TTU Caleb Barnett Rosedale River O'Brien Glengarry



STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

North Gippsland Football Netball League For the year ended 31 October 2022

	NOTES	2022	2021
Income			
Revenues	2	308,647	175,063
Total Income		308,647	175,063
Gross Surplus		308,647	175,063
Expenditure			
Other Expenses	3	296,722	177,412
Grand Final Dinner		8,975	-
Total Expenditure		305,696	177,412
Profit/(Loss) before Income Tax Expense		2,951	(2,349)
Profit/(Loss) for the year		2,951	(2,349)

MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY

North Gippsland Football Netball League For the year ended 31 October 2022

	2022	2021
Equity		
Opening Balance	85,461	87,810
Increases		
Profit for the Period	2,951	(2,349)
Total Increases	2,951	(2,349)
Total Equity	88,411	85,461

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

North Gippsland Football Netball League As at 31 October 2022

	NOTES	2022	2021
Assets			
Current Assets			
Cash and Cash Equivalents	5	84,920	86,563
Trade and Other Receivables	6	380	10
Total Current Assets		85,300	86,573
Non-Current Assets			
Other Non-Current Assets		3,781	-
Total Non-Current Assets		3,781	-
Total Assets		89,081	86,573
Liabilities			
Current Liabilities			
Trade and Other Payables		485	-
GST Payable		184	1,112
Total Current Liabilities		670	1,112
Other Current Liabilities			
Rounding		-	-
Total Other Current Liabilities		-	-
Total Liabilities		670	1,112
Net Assets		88,411	85,461
Member's Funds			
Capital Reserve		88,411	85,461
Total Member's Funds		88,411	85,461

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

North Gippsland Football Netball League As at 31 October 2022

1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial report covers North Gippsland Football Netball League as an individual entity. The North Gippsland Football Netball Leagie is an association incorporated in Victoria under the Associations Incorporated Reform Act 2012.

Basis of Preparation

In the board's opinion, the incorporated association is not a reporting entity because there are no users dependent on general purpose financial statements.

These are special purpose financial statements that have been prepared for the purposes of complying with the Associations Incorporation Reform Act 2012 and associated regulations. The board have determined that the accounting policies adopted are appropriate to meet the needs of the members of the North Gippsland Football Netball League.

The financial report has been prepared on an accrual basis and is based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities.

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by NGFNL in the preparation of the financial report. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Income Tax

NGFNL is a Not-For-Profit organisation and is not subject to Commonwealth Government Income Taxation in the normal course of operations.

(b) Revenue

Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the financial assets.

Other revenue is recognised when the right to receive the revenue has been established.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST)

(c) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the statement of financial position are shown inclusive of GST where applicable.

	2022	2021
. Revenue		
Operating Activities		
Finals Income - Gate	(40,503)	-
Finals Income - Video	(1,000)	-
Final - Grand Final Breakfast	(1,891)	-
Raffles - Final Series	(300)	-
Finals Income	(51,345)	-
Fines	(978)	(1,591)
Investigation Deposits	(455)	(991)
League Fees	(160,000)	(120,364)
Netball - Registrations	-	(909)
Netball - Other Income	(77)	(18)
NGFNL Affiliation Fee	(5,000)	(10,733)
Sponsorship	(47,098)	(40,455)
Total Revenue from Operating Activities	(308,647)	(175,060)
Non-Operating Activities		
Interest Received	-	(3)
Total Revenue from Non-Operating Activities	•	(3)
Total Revenue	(308,647)	(175,063)

3. Profit

Profit has been determined after:

	2022	202:
a) Expenses		
ost of services		
Grand Final Dinner	8,975	
Advertising	978	4,456
Affiliation Fees	-	(95
Audit Fees	61	108
Pride	2,575	644
Clothing & Uniforms	409	322
Equipment	-	177
Investigation Deposit Refund	455	1,000
Tribunal Expenses	2,127	2,023
IT/Computer, Software & Maintenance	651	644
Meeting & Seminar Expenses	2,121	293
Printing, Postage & Stationery	1,855	1,510
Umpires - Home and Away	151,992	94,259
Taggers	32,279	18,360
Finals - Ground Hire	1,636	
Finals - Trophies and Medals	1,454	3,65
Finals - Football Umpires	15,327	
Finals - Netball Umpires	5,978	
Finals - Tagger	9,595	450
Finals - Equipment	5,273	24
Finals - Videos	1,000	
Finals - Security	4,958	
Finals - Other	7,985	
Interleague Expenses - Football	1,975	3,033
Interleague expenses - Netball	3,566	1,153
General Expenses	1,012	90
Netball Expenses - Registrations	-	7:
Netball Expenses - Netball Vic Affiliation	250	
Netball Expenses - Other	1,279	395
Finals - Float Gate	-	
Administration Fees	39,932	34,155
Total Cost of services	305,696	166,73
ad Debts Written Off	-	10,682
otal Expenses	305,696	177,412

Significant Revenue & Expenses:

There are no other significant income and expense items

4. Income Tax Expense

NGFNL is a Not-For-Profit organisation and is not subject to Commonwealth Government Income Taxation in the normal course of operations.

	2022	2021
5. Cash Assets		
Football Account	84,820	86,463
Cash on Hand	100	100
Total Cash Assets	84,920	86,563
	2022	2021
6. Receivables		
Trade Debtors	380	10
Total Receivables	380	10
	2022	2021
7. Payables		
GST	(184)	(1,112)
Total Payables	(184)	(1,112)

8. Retained Surplus

NGFNL is a not for profit organisation. Therefore all surpluses are retained for use in future activities

9. Events Subsequent to Reporting Date

There are no events subsequent to balance date known at this time that will have any impact on the financial results as presented.

10. Related Parties

No member of the board received remuneration from the organisation.

No amounts for retirement or superannuation were paid to any Board member.

Administration fees are paid to Michelle Kyle for both administration and bookkeeping services.

SPONSORS

2022 NORTH GIPPSLAND FOOTBALL NETBALL LEAGUE SPONSORS

The AGL Loy Yang North Gippsland Football Netball League and its affiliated clubs would like to thank our partners who contributed to the success of the 2022 Season











